




1                                                                                 

  
 
 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ August 21, 2014 at 7:00 PM   

  
  1.  Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance  
        Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00pm and welcomed those in attendance 
        Council Member Lynch delivered the invocation 
 
  2.  Roll Call 
       All present 
 
  3.  Staff Comments 
       No staff Comments  
 
  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
       Stan Holcomb , 1301 Still Meadow Drive, recommended Jennifer Jones for the position on 
       The Public Arts Commission 
 
  5.  Proclamation recognizing the Leander Fire Department 
       This item sponsored by Mayor Pro Tem Garcia 
       Mayor Pro Tem Garcia read the Proclamation and it was presented to Chief Bill Gardner 
       and members of the Leander Fire Department 
 
 

        
  
   

  6.  Approval of the minutes: Regular Meeting August 7, 2014  
 
  7.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-008: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for a parcel of land located at 17400 Ronald Reagan Blvd.,  
       Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

 
   8.   Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-011: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
         Composite Zoning Ordinance for a tract of land generally located at 1001 CR 280, Leander, Williamson  
         County, Texas  
 
   9.  Second Reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 121.748 acres, more or less,  

      out of the Charles Cochran  Survey, Abstract No. 134, located in Williamson County, Texas and  
      including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed  
      area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for  
      open meetings and other related matters 

              Mayor   – Christopher Fielder        Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
              Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette                                     Place 5 – Jason Dishongh  
              Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch                                            Place 6 – David Siebold  

   Place 3 – Simon Garcia (Mayor Pro Tem)                City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                                                      

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 



2                                                                                 

 
 
 
 

10.  Second Reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing all those certain tracts or  
       parcels of land being 41.669 acres, more or less, located Hero Way east of CR 270 in Williamson  
       County, Texas and including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan  
       for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and  
       providing for open meetings and other related matters   
 
       Mayor Fielder pulled item # 10 from the consent agenda 
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve items #6 through # 9.  Second by Council  
       Member Dishongh. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Mayor Fielder announced that we had a request to speak on item # 10 from Karen Hickam at  
       3150 Hero Way.  Karen Hickam withdrew her request to speak. 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve item # 10.  Second by Council Member  
       Garcia. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

        
 
 

11.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-018: Consider a zoning change for several tracts of land  
       generally located to the northeast of the intersection of Hwy. 183A & E. San Gabriel Pkwy. For 490  
       acres, more or less from PUD/TOD, Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development to an  
       amended PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Tommy Tucker – Applicant explained the proposed project 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-018: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for 
       several tracts of land generally located to the northeast of the intersection of Hwy. 183A & E. San  
       Gabriel Pkwy., Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve with the P&Z recommendation of only 4  
       locations for food trucks.  Second by Council Member Siebold. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
12.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-022: Consider a zoning change for several tracts of land  
       generally located 1,350 feet east from the northeast corner from the intersection of N. Bagdad Road and  
       Old 2243 West for 28.5 acres, more or less from HC-4-D, Heavy Commercial to GC-4-D, General  
       Commercial and MF-2-B, Multi Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       No speakers 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-022: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
       for several tracts of land generally located 1,350 feet east from the northeast corner from the intersection 
       of N Bagdad Road and Old 2243 West, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve GC-3-C and MF-2-B.  Second by Council  
        Member Dishongh. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 



3                                                                                 

 
 
 
 

                          
 
 

   
  13.  Second reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-020: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
         Composite Zoning Ordinance for five tracts of land generally located at 3034 Hero Way approximately  
         3,330 feet to the east of the intersection of Hero Way and 183A Toll Road Leander, Williamson County,  
         Texas 
        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Denise Lewis, 3336 Hero Way – spoke against 
        Andrew Lewis, 3336 Hero Way – spoke against 
        Karen Hickam, 3150 Hero Way – spoke against 

 
        Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese. 
         
        Substitute Motion by Council Member Siebold to approve with the first 200’ as HC-3-B on San  
        Gabriel and Hero Way. Motion fails for lack of a second. 
 
        Mayor Fielder asked for a vote to call the question.  Vote is unanimous. 
 
        Council moved back to original motion which passes, 5 to 2 with Mayor Fielder and Council  
        Member Siebold voting against. 
 
  

  14.  Second reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-021: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
         Composite Zoning Ordinance for two tracts of land located at 2937 Hero Way, Leander, Williamson 

County, Texas 
         Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 

 
        Motion made by Council Member Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Navarrette. 
        Motion passes, 5 to 2 with Mayor Fielder and Council Member Siebold voting against. 
  

        15.  Second reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-009: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
         Composite Zoning Ordinance for a parcel of land located to the southwest of the intersection of Crystal  
         Falls Parkway & Christine Drive, Leander, Travis and Williamson Counties, Texas 
        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 

          
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Navarrette. 
        Motion passes, 5 to 2 with Council Members Dishongh and Abruzzese voting against. 

 
  16.  First reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing the 9.999 acres, more or less,  
         Parker tract, located in Williamson County, Texas and including the abutting streets, roadways, and 
         rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a  
         severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and other related matters. 
        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 

 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Garcia. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 



4                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  17.  First reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing the 113.372 acres, more or less, 

Garlock and Christianson tracts, located in Williamson County, Texas and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; 
providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and other related 
matters. 

        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 

         Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Lynch. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

  
   18.  Consider a development agreement between the City of Leander and NK Land Development, LLC for 90  
          acres more or less, generally located ¾ of a mile to the east of the intersection of 183A Toll Road and  
          RM 2243, on the south side of RM 224, encompassing the property known as the Marbella  
          Subdivision within the city limits of the City of Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
   19.  Consider a development agreement between the City of Leander and RJ Madden, Inc for 66.198 acres  
          more or less, generally located 1,000 feet to the east of the northeast corner of the intersection of 183A  
          Toll Road and E. Woodview Drive, encompassing the property known as the Stewart Crossing  
          Subdivision within the city limits of the City of Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 

        Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

  
   20.  Receive Effective & Rollback Tax Rate Calculations for FY 2014-15 
          Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
    
          Council received the Effective & Rollback Tax Rate Calculations for FY 2014-15 
 
   21.  Presentation on the FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget 
          Kent Cagle, City Manager gave the presentation 
 
   22.  Consider a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for FY 2014-15 
          Robert Powers, Finance Director explained  
 
          Motion made by Mayor Fielder to move to place the proposed tax rate for FY 2014-15 of 65.292 
          cents per $100 valuation on the agenda of a future meeting as an action item. Second By Mayor  
          Pro Tem Garcia.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
   23.  Schedule Two Public Hearings on a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for FY 2014-15 
          Robert Powers, Finance Director explained  
 
          Motion made by Mayor Fielder to move to schedule two public hearings on September 4, 2014 

(regular City Council meeting beginning at 7:00 p.m.) and September 11, 2014 (special called City 
Council meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m.) to consider a proposal to adopt a tax rate of 65.292 cents 
per $100 valuation.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Garcia.   Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
 
 



5                                                                                 

 
 
 
 

      24.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council Members gave their closing statements 
 

   25.  Adjournment  
         With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:26 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          Attest: 
 
 
 
          __________________________________                            _______________________________ 
          Christopher Fielder, Mayor             Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 04, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-018: Consider action on the rezoning of several 

tracts of land generally located to the northeast of the intersection 
of Hwy 183A & E San Gabriel Pkwy. for 490 acres more or less; 
WCAD Parcels R032104, R032237, R485832, R485833, 
R485834, R032103, R032211, R032196, R525991, and R525993. 
Currently, the property is zoned PUD/TOD (Planned Unit 
Development/Transit Oriented Development) and the applicant is 
proposing an amendment to the PUD, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Stefan Pharis on behalf of Crescent Leander TX, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the Bryson PUD with the 
following condition at the August 14, 2014 meeting. 
1. The number of food trailer locations shall be limited to four or 

less. 
 The City Council unanimously approved the Planning & Zoning 

Commission recommendation at the August 21, 2014 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Aerial Map 
 4.   Proposed Bryson PUD  
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
   
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis 
 Development Services Director  08/22/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-018 

BRYSON PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Crescent Leander TX, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the east of 183 A Toll and north of 

East San Gabriel Parkway and includes approximately 490 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Developed Large Lot Single-Family Homes in the ETJ 

EAST OCL Developed Large Lot Single-Family Homes in the ETJ 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Undeveloped Land located in the TOD 

WEST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Land located in the TOD 
        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  The intent of this zoning district 
is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that will include a variety of housing types as 
well as multi-family and local commercial development.   The proposal includes detached 
residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty-five (45’) feet to over seventy (70’) feet 
wide and attached townhomes and apartments.  In addition, no more than twenty (20%) percent 
of the Mixed Use area can be developed for local commercial uses.  The applicant has 
incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a well integrated neighborhood plan providing 
a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The PUD proposal includes the following base zoning districts:  SFS-2-A (Single-Family 
Suburban), SFU-2-A (Single-Family Urban), SFC-2-A (Single-Family Compact), SFL-2-A 
(Single-Family Limited), SFT-2-A (Single-Family Townhome), MF-2-A (Multi-Family), and 
LC-2-A (Local Commercial).    
 
The table below identifies the proposed development standards for the residential zoning 
districts,  setbacks, and lot sizes for this project.  The primary difference between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the proposed PUD is the lot size and the setbacks associated with the 
SFL-2-A district.  The ordinance currently requires the lot width to be 41 feet and the minimum 
lot size to be 4100 square feet.  The applicant is proposing a reduced lot size and rear setback for 



Attachment # 1                 

 

this district if a an alley loaded product is proposed.  The proposal includes increased dwelling 
sizes and lot depths for the different districts.  The overall project is limited to 1,261 single 
family units and 500 multi-family units. In addition, the PUD requires a minimum of 375 SFS 
lots and limits the SFC to 575, SFL to 200, and SFT to 213 units. 
 

RES District Minimum 
Standards 

SFL           
(Rear 
Load) 

SFL SFC SFU SFS 

In
te

rio
r L

ot
 Lot Width 35 45 50 60 70 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 3500 5625 6250 7500 8750 

C
or

ne
r L

ot
 Lot Width 45 55 60 70 80 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 4500 6875 7500 8750 10000 

 

Building 
Square 
Footage 

1050 1050 1400 1800 2100 

 

Side Yard 
Setback 5 5 5 5 5 

 

Rear Yard 
Setback 5 15 15 15 15 

 

Street Side 
Building 
Setback 

15 20 20 20 20 

 

Street Side 
Garage 
Setback 

- 25 25 25 25 

 

Street Side 
Porch 

Setback 
10 15 15 15 15 

 
All residential properties within the RES and MU district shall comply with the Type A 
Architectural Component unless they substantially conform to the Craftsman, Farmhouse or 
similar style included within the PUD.   This provision does not apply to LC uses or traditional 
apartments.   
 
ADDITIONAL VARIATIONS  
The applicant is requesting the following variations from the City Ordinances: 
 Allowing temporary model home parking areas and permitting crushed granite as the 

parking lot material with a time frame of 10 years.  Currently, we require a special use 
permit to be submitted and reviewed by Planning & Zoning Commission and City 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Council.  Including this provision, would waive the requirement for the special use 
permit. 

 Allowing tertiary entrance signs at entryways into sections within the PUD and are 
permitted only in subdivisions that exceed 50 acres. They may be used to identify various 
sections that are 15 acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the PUD.  
Currently, the ordinance requires that the sections are a minimum of 25 acres in size.  In 
addition, they are requesting to increase the sign face from 10 square feet to 12 square 
feet.   

 Allowing decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures.  A license agreement 
will also be required to allow the decorative poles. 

 Allowing banner signs advertising the community and HOA events on the light poles.  
This signs will be limited 3’ wide by 6’ tall or 18 square feet. 

 Allowing a 8’ wide decomposed granite trail with a 6” concrete ribbon in lieu of a 
sidewalk along collector streets.  A license agreement will be required. 

 Allowing the use of cementious fiber or board and batten materials to qualify as masonry 
when homes are constructed a specific architectural style. 

 Allowing garages to extend up to 5’ past the dwelling on lots that are greater than 60’ 
wide. 

 Allowing licensed food trailers on HOA property and parks.   
 Limiting the fencing adjacent to greenbelts to tubular metal or split rail. 
 Requiring additional landscaping for residential development. 

 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The proposed PUD promotes more flexibility 
with the location of the single-family districts and incorporates a mixture of multi-family, single-
family townhome and local commercial.  This application effectively utilizes composite zoning 
to incorporate a variety of land uses while maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD 
meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

BRYSON

5D

4C

4C
4C

4C

CR 270

US
 18

3

US
 18

3 S
B

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

6

CR
 27

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

CR 26
7

BAKER LN

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

RIVER RUN

PVR 949

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

SIGNAL HILL DR

HI
GH

 G
AB

RI
EL

 D
R

GREEN VALLEY DR

MI
KE

S W
AY

KING LN

AMANDAS WAY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

SK
YV

IE
W 

TE
R

JENNIFER LN

LEN BAR LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

HERITAGE GROVE RD

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

NORWOOD DR

BA
R R

YD
ER

 TR
L

ARROYO CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-018
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Bryson PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CR 270
US

 18
3 S

B
US

 18
3 N

B

US
 18

3

CR
 26

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

CR 26
7

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

BAKER LN

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

SIGNAL HILL DR

GREEN VALLEY DR

KING LN
CR 276

SK
YV

IE
W 

TE
R

JENNIFER LN

LEN BAR LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

NORWOOD DR

MIKES WAY

BA
R R

YD
ER

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-018 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bryson PUD



EXHIBIT C 

1 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 
Bryson  

Planned Unit Development  
 
I. General Notes 
 

A. The PUD consists of approximately 490.00 acres (the “Property”) located in Williamson 
County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 

II. Zoning Districts 
 
A. The PUD consists of two use districts depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout 

& Land Use Plan attached hereto, including:  
1. MU (Mixed Use) containing approximately 82.61 acres; and 
2. RES (Residential) containing approximately 407.60 acres;  

 
III. Use Components  

 
A. Allowed uses.  The following table contains the use components allowed within the MU 

& RES zoning use district boundaries shown on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance.  The total number of single family units shall not exceed 1261 units. 
 

Table 1 

*35’ width for rear load. 
 
 

B. RES – Residential District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 

Land Use RES 
District 

MU 
District 

Lot 
Width Unit Mix 

  
 
 

Single Family Suburban (SFS) X  70 375 Minimum 
Single Family Urban (SFU) X X 60 375-525  

Single Family Compact (SFC) X X 50 575 Maximum 
Single Family Limited (SFL) X X 45* 200 Units Maximum 

Single Family Townhome (SFT)  X 20 213 Units Maximum 
Multi-Family (MF)   X  500 Units Maximum 

Local Commercial (LC)  X  25% of 
MU Area Maximum 



2 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

1. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFL, SFC, SFU, and SFS, use components, as more 
particularly set forth in Table 2 in this PUD ordinance, and according to the approved 
concept plan.   

2. Temporary modular welcome centers are permitted in a section of the RES District 
for no more than five (5) years after installation and then must be moved to another 
section for no more than five (5) years after installation.    

3. Licensed Food Trailers are permitted on HOA owned property or parks and are 
subject to permitting requirements promulgated by the City of Leander.  The number 
of food trailer locations shall be limited to four or less. 
 

C. MU - Mixed Use District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 
1. Mixed Use is defined as combining different permitted uses in the same building 

and/or having multiple permitted uses within the MU District.  The different uses are 
not required to be within the same building or the same Legal Lot or Legal Tract. 

2. Development in the MU District shall be in accordance with the approved concept 
plan with no more than 500 of the units being MF-Multi Family. 

3. Temporary modular welcome centers are permitted in a section of the MU District for 
no more than five (5) years after installation and then must be moved to another 
section for no more than five (5) years after installation.    

4. Licensed Food Trailers are permitted on HOA owned property or parks and are 
subject to permitting requirements promulgated by the City of Leander.  The number 
of food trailer locations shall be limited to four or less. 

5. The following uses allowed within the LC use component of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance shall be prohibited in the MU District: 
(a) Funeral Home 
(b) Cemetery 

 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

 
A. RES District.   

1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached 
as Table 2 to this PUD ordinance.  To the extent that these requirements are 
inconsistent with the requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site 
Standards), Article VII (Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural 
Standards) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance, the Development Standards set 
forth in this PUD ordinance and Table 2 attached hereto will apply.  

2. RES District Architectural Standards shall comply with the Type A Architectural 
Component or as modified below: 
(a)  Cementious-fiber, i.e. hardiplank or Board and Batten materials as defined 

below, shall be allowed to count toward the masonry requirement for homes with 
an architectural style that substantially conforms to the images shown in Exhibit 
3, including, but not limited to Craftsman, Farmhouse, and other similar 
architectural styles. 

(b) For purposes of this PUD, Hardiplank is defined as: Horizontal cementious-fiber 
planking with a width not to exceed 9”, and Board and Batten is defined as board 



3 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

and batten cementious-fiber planking with vertical member spacing not to exceed 
24”. 

(c) The list of design feature examples is as follows, 5 features per home are 
required:   
(i) Recessed entry 
(ii) Porch 
(iii) Ornamental Windows 
(iv) Horizontal offset 
(v) Standing seam metal roof 
(vi) At least 15% of front façade comprised of window and door openings 
(vii) Vertical elevations offset 
(viii) Varied roof heights 
(ix) Canopy/shed roof or other architectural elements 
(x) Balcony 
(xi) Integrated Planter or Wing Walls  
(xii) Decorative garage doors 

3. Landscaping Requirements for each single family lot are as follows: 
(a) Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood 
(b) Shrubs: 20 x 5 Gal 
(c) Shrubs: 20 x 1 Gal  
(d) Turf: Bermuda or Zoysia, may not exceed 2/3 of the total landscape area.                    
(e) AC Units, Dry Utility Pedestals must be screened 24" min. height at planting - 36" 

w/in 1-2 years.  Working clearance and access must be maintained. 
(f) All plants are to be 100% native and adapted, as set forth in the Grow Green 

Guide to Native & Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin 
Watershed Protection Department and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service 

4. Peaked roof with a minimum 4:12 pitch, except for accents, dormers, porches, and 
other architectural features are permitted. 

5. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

6. Garages in SFL, SFC, SFU, SFS lot types may protrude up to 5’ past the front 
building façade line, but shall be subject to a 25’ front setback in all instances. 

7. Garages in line with or behind the front building façade may be located on the 20’ 
front setback for all lot types. 

8. Side Entry Garages in line with or behind the side building facade may be located on 
the 20’ foot setback for all lot types. 

9. For lots less than 70’, only one (1) enclosed garage parking space shall be required, 
provided that the total number of required parking spaces is met.  No more than 10% 
of the total lots within the PUD may utilize this standard. 

10. Temporary model home parking areas are a permitted use in the RES District in 
areas adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) 
years after the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In 
addition to authorized materials in the Composite Zoning Ordinance, such temporary 
parking areas may be constructed with crushed granite.   

 
 



4 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 
 

Table 2 
 

RES District Minimum 
Standards 

SFL           
(Rear 
Load) 

SFL SFC SFU SFS 
In

te
rio

r L
ot

 

Lot Width 35 45 50 60 70 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 3500 5625 6250 7500 8750 

C
or

ne
r L

ot
 Lot Width 45 55 60 70 80 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 4500 6875 7500 8750 10000 

 

Building 
Square 
Footage 

1050 1050 1400 1800 2100 

 

Side Yard 
Setback 5 5 5 5 5 

 

Rear Yard 
Setback 5 15 15 15 15 

 

Front 
Garage 
Setback 

N/A 25 25 25 25 

 
Front 

Setback 10 20 20 20 20 

 

Street Side 
Building 
Setback 

10 15 15 15 15 

 

Street Side 
Garage 
Setback 

N/A 20 20 20 20 

 
 

B. MU District.   
1. Development in the MU District of the PUD will comply with one of the following Use, 

Site and Architectural Component standards: 
(a) MF-2-A; 
(b) SFT-2-A; 
(c) SFL-2-A; 
(d) SFU-2-A;  



5 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

(e) SFC-2-A or 
(f) LC-2-A. 

2. MU District Residential Architectural Standards for SFL, SFT, or MF  product (that is 
limited to detached structures, attached structures with 6 or fewer units, apartment 
style development must comply with the Type A Architectural requirements without 
the modifications listed)  will comply with Article VII – Type A or as modified below: 
(c) Cementious-fiber, i.e. hardiplank or Board and Batten materials as defined 

below, shall be allowed to count toward the masonry requirement for homes with 
an architectural style that substantially conforms to the images shown in Exhibit 
3, including, but not limited to Craftsman, Farmhouse, and other similar 
architectural styles. For purposes of this PUD, Hardiplank is defined as: 
Horizontal cementious-fiber planking with a width not to exceed 9”, and Board 
and Batten is defined as: Board and batten cementious-fiber planking with 
vertical member spacing not to exceed 24” .  

(d) The list of design feature examples is as follows, 5 features per home are 
required:  
(i) Recessed entry 
(ii) Porch 
(iii) Ornamental Windows 
(iv) Horizontal offset 
(v) Standing seam metal roof 
(vi) At least 15% of front façade comprised of window and door openings 
(vii) Vertical elevations offset 
(viii) Varied roof heights 
(ix) Canopy/shed roof or other architectural elements 
(x) Balcony 
(xi) Integrated Planter or Wing Walls  
(xii) Decorative garage doors 

3. Landscaping Requirements for each single family lot are as follows: 
(a) Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood 
(b) Shrubs: 20 x 5 Gal 
(c) Shrubs: 20 x 1 Gal  
(d) Turf: Bermuda or Zoysia, may not exceed 2/3 of the total landscape area.                    
(e) AC Units, Dry Utility Pedestals must be screened 24" min. height at planting - 36" 

w/in 1-2 years.  Working clearance and access must be maintained. 
(f) All plants are to be 100% native and adapted, as set forth in the Grow Green 

Guide to Native & Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin 
Watershed Protection Department and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service. 

4. Peaked roof with a minimum 4:12 pitch, except for accents, dormers, porches, and 
other architectural features 

5. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

6. Garages in SFL, SFC, SFU lot types may protrude 5’ past the front building façade 
line, but shall be subject to a 25’ front setback in all instances. 

7. Garages in line with or behind the front building façade shall be subject to a 20’ front 
setback for all lot types. 



6 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

8. Side Entry Garages in line with or behind the side building facade may be located on 
the 20’ foot setback for all lot types. 
 

9. For lots less than 70’, only one (1) enclosed garage parking space shall be required.  
The total required number of parking spaces shall remain the same.  No more than 
10% of the total lots within the PUD may utilize this standard. 

10. Temporary model home parking areas are a permitted use in the MU District in 
areas adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) 
years after the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In 
addition to authorized materials, such temporary parking areas may be constructed 
with crushed granite. 

V. Roadway Design 
 

A. The Bryson community will incorporate the following standards for Public Streets and 
Private Drives, and as outlined in Table 3 and Exhibit 2 - Street Sections 
 

B. Traffic calming devices such as roundabouts, traffic circles, neck downs, chicanes, etc. 
are permitted within Bryson, and shall be subject to approval by the City of Leander 
Engineer. 

 
C. Street Trees located in a planting median between the back of curb and sidewalk in the 

Public ROW shall be allowed, pursuant to a license agreement with the City of Leander. 
 

D. Roadway callouts on PUD Land Use Plan are minimum standards.  Alternate lane 
configurations may be approved by the City Engineer. 

 
Table 3 

 
Public Streets and 

Private Drives EC-120 RC-71 RC-61 RC-60 LS-50 AL-25 PD-28 PD-25 

ROW Varies 71 61 60 50 25 N/A N/A 

FOC-FOC 2 @ 18 46 36 34 28 20 28 25 
Min. Centerline Radius 300 300 300 300 180 N/A N/A N/A 

On Street Parking No Yes Yes No Yes No 
Yes 
(one 
side) 

No 

Curb Return Radius 15 15 15 15 15 10 10 10 

Curb Return Radius 
for Fire Lanes N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 25 

Bike Lane Yes Yes No Yes No No No No 

Sidewalks Required 
Yes 

(North 
side only) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No 

 



7 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

VI. Signage 
 

A. The following modifications to the tertiary entrance signs shall be regulated by this PUD.  
Tertiary entrance signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD, 
and they may be used to identify various sections that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in 
size in order to enhance direction within the PUD.  Tertiary entrance signs shall be 
comprised entirely of stone, masonry or, metal with engraved lettering or with pin-
mounted aluminum or steel letters.  The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be 
limited to a total size of twelve (12) square feet.  All signs in a public ROW will require a 
License Agreement. For sections that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size with 
multiple entries, a tertiary sign shall be allowed at each entry. 
 

B. Decorative Street and Pole Mounted Banner signs are permissible in all PUD zoning 
districts along collector streets.  The maximum banner size shall be 3’ width x 6’ height 
or 18 SF.  Banner signs are permitted to advertise the Bryson Community and HOA 
events only.  Banner signs shall require a License Agreement from the City of Leander, 
and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
VII. Lighting  

 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article VI (Site Component) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date 
of this PUD Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along, and within the 
ROW of collector streets may be decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures 
and shall require a License Agreement and will be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA). 

 
VIII. Sidewalks and Trails 

 
A. The main entry road off of US-183A up to the amenity center is only required to have a 

sidewalk on the north side of the roadway.  This sidewalk shall be a minimum 8’ width. 
 

B. When located adjacent and/or parallel to a collector street and within the right-of-way an 
8’ wide decomposed granite trail with a 6” width concrete ribbon curb shall be allowed in 
lieu of a concrete sidewalk and will require a license agreement. At least one side of the 
roadway is required to have a continuous concrete sidewalk that meets applicable 
accessibility requirements 
 

 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
  



8 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

IX. Fencing 
 
A. Fencing located adjacent to greenbelts will be limited to wrought iron, tubular metal or 

split rail or City of Leander Planning Director approved equivalent 
 
X. Building Height 

 
A. Building heights shall be measured from the highest point of the finished floor elevation.  

In the case of split level foundations, the building height shall be measured from the 
highest finished floor elevation of such home. This measurement only applies to the 
Building Height Limitation of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.    

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  



9 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

Exhibit 1 
Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 

 



10 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

Exhibit  2 
Street Sections 

 
 

 
 

 
  



11 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



13 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

Exhibit  3 
Architectural Styles 

 

 
 

 
 

 



14 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 



15 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR SEVERAL PARCELS OF 
LAND BY CREATING THE BRYSON PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
AND ADOPTING A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
SUCH PARCELS; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Oak Creek Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No.05-026, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Property Rezoned.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creation of the Bryson 
PUD and adoption of the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein for all 
purposes for  several parcels, which are herein referred to as the “Property,” generally located to the 
northeast of the intersection of 183A Toll Road & East San Gabriel Parkway, and more 
particularly described as follows:  those certain parcels of land being 490 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly shown and described in 
Exhibits “A” and “B”; and identified by tax identification numbers R032104, R032237, 
R485832, R485833, R485834, R032103, R032211, R032196, R525991, and R525993.  The 
Property is zoned to the planned unit development district known as the Bryson PUD within the 
TODD.  The Property shall be developed and occupied in compliance with the PUD plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit C, the Conventional Development Sector Standards of the Smart Code 
(defined in the TODD Ordinance), the Composite Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable 
regulations of the City.   



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 4. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 5.Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 21st day of August, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 4th day of September, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

BRYSON

5D

4C

4C
4C

4C

CR 270

US
 18

3

US
 18

3 S
B

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

6

CR
 27

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

CR 26
7

BAKER LN

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

RIVER RUN

PVR 949

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

SIGNAL HILL DR

HI
GH

 G
AB

RI
EL

 D
R

GREEN VALLEY DR

MI
KE

S W
AY

KING LN

AMANDAS WAY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

SK
YV

IE
W 

TE
R

JENNIFER LN

LEN BAR LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

HERITAGE GROVE RD

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

NORWOOD DR

BA
R R

YD
ER

 TR
L

ARROYO CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case 
14-Z-018
Bryson PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



EXHIBIT C 

1 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 
Bryson  

Planned Unit Development  
 
I. General Notes 
 

A. The PUD consists of approximately 490.00 acres (the “Property”) located in Williamson 
County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 

II. Zoning Districts 
 
A. The PUD consists of two use districts depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout 

& Land Use Plan attached hereto, including:  
1. MU (Mixed Use) containing approximately 82.61 acres; and 
2. RES (Residential) containing approximately 407.60 acres;  

 
III. Use Components  

 
A. Allowed uses.  The following table contains the use components allowed within the MU 

& RES zoning use district boundaries shown on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance.  The total number of single family units shall not exceed 1261 units. 
 

Table 1 

*35’ width for rear load. 
 
 

B. RES – Residential District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 

Land Use RES 
District 

MU 
District 

Lot 
Width Unit Mix 

  
 
 

Single Family Suburban (SFS) X  70 375 Minimum 
Single Family Urban (SFU) X X 60 375-525  

Single Family Compact (SFC) X X 50 575 Maximum 
Single Family Limited (SFL) X X 45* 200 Units Maximum 

Single Family Townhome (SFT)  X 20 213 Units Maximum 
Multi-Family (MF)   X  500 Units Maximum 

Local Commercial (LC)  X  25% of 
MU Area Maximum 



2 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

1. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFL, SFC, SFU, and SFS, use components, as more 
particularly set forth in Table 2 in this PUD ordinance, and according to the approved 
concept plan.   

2. Temporary modular welcome centers are permitted in a section of the RES District 
for no more than five (5) years after installation and then must be moved to another 
section for no more than five (5) years after installation.    

3. Licensed Food Trailers are permitted on HOA owned property or parks and are 
subject to permitting requirements promulgated by the City of Leander.  The number 
of food trailer locations shall be limited to four or less. 
 

C. MU - Mixed Use District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 
1. Mixed Use is defined as combining different permitted uses in the same building 

and/or having multiple permitted uses within the MU District.  The different uses are 
not required to be within the same building or the same Legal Lot or Legal Tract. 

2. Development in the MU District shall be in accordance with the approved concept 
plan with no more than 500 of the units being MF-Multi Family. 

3. Temporary modular welcome centers are permitted in a section of the MU District for 
no more than five (5) years after installation and then must be moved to another 
section for no more than five (5) years after installation.    

4. Licensed Food Trailers are permitted on HOA owned property or parks and are 
subject to permitting requirements promulgated by the City of Leander.  The number 
of food trailer locations shall be limited to four or less. 

5. The following uses allowed within the LC use component of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance shall be prohibited in the MU District: 
(a) Funeral Home 
(b) Cemetery 

 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

 
A. RES District.   

1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached 
as Table 2 to this PUD ordinance.  To the extent that these requirements are 
inconsistent with the requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site 
Standards), Article VII (Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural 
Standards) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance, the Development Standards set 
forth in this PUD ordinance and Table 2 attached hereto will apply.  

2. RES District Architectural Standards shall comply with the Type A Architectural 
Component or as modified below: 
(a)  Cementious-fiber, i.e. hardiplank or Board and Batten materials as defined 

below, shall be allowed to count toward the masonry requirement for homes with 
an architectural style that substantially conforms to the images shown in Exhibit 
3, including, but not limited to Craftsman, Farmhouse, and other similar 
architectural styles. 

(b) For purposes of this PUD, Hardiplank is defined as: Horizontal cementious-fiber 
planking with a width not to exceed 9”, and Board and Batten is defined as board 



3 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

and batten cementious-fiber planking with vertical member spacing not to exceed 
24”. 

(c) The list of design feature examples is as follows, 5 features per home are 
required:   
(i) Recessed entry 
(ii) Porch 
(iii) Ornamental Windows 
(iv) Horizontal offset 
(v) Standing seam metal roof 
(vi) At least 15% of front façade comprised of window and door openings 
(vii) Vertical elevations offset 
(viii) Varied roof heights 
(ix) Canopy/shed roof or other architectural elements 
(x) Balcony 
(xi) Integrated Planter or Wing Walls  
(xii) Decorative garage doors 

3. Landscaping Requirements for each single family lot are as follows: 
(a) Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood 
(b) Shrubs: 20 x 5 Gal 
(c) Shrubs: 20 x 1 Gal  
(d) Turf: Bermuda or Zoysia, may not exceed 2/3 of the total landscape area.                    
(e) AC Units, Dry Utility Pedestals must be screened 24" min. height at planting - 36" 

w/in 1-2 years.  Working clearance and access must be maintained. 
(f) All plants are to be 100% native and adapted, as set forth in the Grow Green 

Guide to Native & Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin 
Watershed Protection Department and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service 

4. Peaked roof with a minimum 4:12 pitch, except for accents, dormers, porches, and 
other architectural features are permitted. 

5. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

6. Garages in SFL, SFC, SFU, SFS lot types may protrude up to 5’ past the front 
building façade line, but shall be subject to a 25’ front setback in all instances. 

7. Garages in line with or behind the front building façade may be located on the 20’ 
front setback for all lot types. 

8. Side Entry Garages in line with or behind the side building facade may be located on 
the 20’ foot setback for all lot types. 

9. For lots less than 70’, only one (1) enclosed garage parking space shall be required, 
provided that the total number of required parking spaces is met.  No more than 10% 
of the total lots within the PUD may utilize this standard. 

10. Temporary model home parking areas are a permitted use in the RES District in 
areas adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) 
years after the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In 
addition to authorized materials in the Composite Zoning Ordinance, such temporary 
parking areas may be constructed with crushed granite.   

 
 



4 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 
 

Table 2 
 

RES District Minimum 
Standards 

SFL           
(Rear 
Load) 

SFL SFC SFU SFS 
In

te
rio

r L
ot

 

Lot Width 35 45 50 60 70 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 3500 5625 6250 7500 8750 

C
or

ne
r L

ot
 Lot Width 45 55 60 70 80 

Lot Depth 100 125 125 125 125 

Lot Area 4500 6875 7500 8750 10000 

 

Building 
Square 
Footage 

1050 1050 1400 1800 2100 

 

Side Yard 
Setback 5 5 5 5 5 

 

Rear Yard 
Setback 5 15 15 15 15 

 

Front 
Garage 
Setback 

N/A 25 25 25 25 

 
Front 

Setback 10 20 20 20 20 

 

Street Side 
Building 
Setback 

10 15 15 15 15 

 

Street Side 
Garage 
Setback 

N/A 20 20 20 20 

 
 

B. MU District.   
1. Development in the MU District of the PUD will comply with one of the following Use, 

Site and Architectural Component standards: 
(a) MF-2-A; 
(b) SFT-2-A; 
(c) SFL-2-A; 
(d) SFU-2-A;  



5 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

(e) SFC-2-A or 
(f) LC-2-A. 

2. MU District Residential Architectural Standards for SFL, SFT, or MF  product (that is 
limited to detached structures, attached structures with 6 or fewer units, apartment 
style development must comply with the Type A Architectural requirements without 
the modifications listed)  will comply with Article VII – Type A or as modified below: 
(c) Cementious-fiber, i.e. hardiplank or Board and Batten materials as defined 

below, shall be allowed to count toward the masonry requirement for homes with 
an architectural style that substantially conforms to the images shown in Exhibit 
3, including, but not limited to Craftsman, Farmhouse, and other similar 
architectural styles. For purposes of this PUD, Hardiplank is defined as: 
Horizontal cementious-fiber planking with a width not to exceed 9”, and Board 
and Batten is defined as: Board and batten cementious-fiber planking with 
vertical member spacing not to exceed 24” .  

(d) The list of design feature examples is as follows, 5 features per home are 
required:  
(i) Recessed entry 
(ii) Porch 
(iii) Ornamental Windows 
(iv) Horizontal offset 
(v) Standing seam metal roof 
(vi) At least 15% of front façade comprised of window and door openings 
(vii) Vertical elevations offset 
(viii) Varied roof heights 
(ix) Canopy/shed roof or other architectural elements 
(x) Balcony 
(xi) Integrated Planter or Wing Walls  
(xii) Decorative garage doors 

3. Landscaping Requirements for each single family lot are as follows: 
(a) Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood 
(b) Shrubs: 20 x 5 Gal 
(c) Shrubs: 20 x 1 Gal  
(d) Turf: Bermuda or Zoysia, may not exceed 2/3 of the total landscape area.                    
(e) AC Units, Dry Utility Pedestals must be screened 24" min. height at planting - 36" 

w/in 1-2 years.  Working clearance and access must be maintained. 
(f) All plants are to be 100% native and adapted, as set forth in the Grow Green 

Guide to Native & Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin 
Watershed Protection Department and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service. 

4. Peaked roof with a minimum 4:12 pitch, except for accents, dormers, porches, and 
other architectural features 

5. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

6. Garages in SFL, SFC, SFU lot types may protrude 5’ past the front building façade 
line, but shall be subject to a 25’ front setback in all instances. 

7. Garages in line with or behind the front building façade shall be subject to a 20’ front 
setback for all lot types. 



6 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

8. Side Entry Garages in line with or behind the side building facade may be located on 
the 20’ foot setback for all lot types. 
 

9. For lots less than 70’, only one (1) enclosed garage parking space shall be required.  
The total required number of parking spaces shall remain the same.  No more than 
10% of the total lots within the PUD may utilize this standard. 

10. Temporary model home parking areas are a permitted use in the MU District in 
areas adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) 
years after the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In 
addition to authorized materials, such temporary parking areas may be constructed 
with crushed granite. 

V. Roadway Design 
 

A. The Bryson community will incorporate the following standards for Public Streets and 
Private Drives, and as outlined in Table 3 and Exhibit 2 - Street Sections 
 

B. Traffic calming devices such as roundabouts, traffic circles, neck downs, chicanes, etc. 
are permitted within Bryson, and shall be subject to approval by the City of Leander 
Engineer. 

 
C. Street Trees located in a planting median between the back of curb and sidewalk in the 

Public ROW shall be allowed, pursuant to a license agreement with the City of Leander. 
 

D. Roadway callouts on PUD Land Use Plan are minimum standards.  Alternate lane 
configurations may be approved by the City Engineer. 

 
Table 3 

 
Public Streets and 

Private Drives EC-120 RC-71 RC-61 RC-60 LS-50 AL-25 PD-28 PD-25 

ROW Varies 71 61 60 50 25 N/A N/A 

FOC-FOC 2 @ 18 46 36 34 28 20 28 25 
Min. Centerline Radius 300 300 300 300 180 N/A N/A N/A 

On Street Parking No Yes Yes No Yes No 
Yes 
(one 
side) 

No 

Curb Return Radius 15 15 15 15 15 10 10 10 

Curb Return Radius 
for Fire Lanes N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 25 

Bike Lane Yes Yes No Yes No No No No 

Sidewalks Required 
Yes 

(North 
side only) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No 

 



7 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

VI. Signage 
 

A. The following modifications to the tertiary entrance signs shall be regulated by this PUD.  
Tertiary entrance signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD, 
and they may be used to identify various sections that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in 
size in order to enhance direction within the PUD.  Tertiary entrance signs shall be 
comprised entirely of stone, masonry or, metal with engraved lettering or with pin-
mounted aluminum or steel letters.  The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be 
limited to a total size of twelve (12) square feet.  All signs in a public ROW will require a 
License Agreement. For sections that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size with 
multiple entries, a tertiary sign shall be allowed at each entry. 
 

B. Decorative Street and Pole Mounted Banner signs are permissible in all PUD zoning 
districts along collector streets.  The maximum banner size shall be 3’ width x 6’ height 
or 18 SF.  Banner signs are permitted to advertise the Bryson Community and HOA 
events only.  Banner signs shall require a License Agreement from the City of Leander, 
and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
VII. Lighting  

 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article VI (Site Component) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date 
of this PUD Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along, and within the 
ROW of collector streets may be decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures 
and shall require a License Agreement and will be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA). 

 
VIII. Sidewalks and Trails 

 
A. The main entry road off of US-183A up to the amenity center is only required to have a 

sidewalk on the north side of the roadway.  This sidewalk shall be a minimum 8’ width. 
 

B. When located adjacent and/or parallel to a collector street and within the right-of-way an 
8’ wide decomposed granite trail with a 6” width concrete ribbon curb shall be allowed in 
lieu of a concrete sidewalk and will require a license agreement. At least one side of the 
roadway is required to have a continuous concrete sidewalk that meets applicable 
accessibility requirements 
 

 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
  



8 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

IX. Fencing 
 
A. Fencing located adjacent to greenbelts will be limited to wrought iron, tubular metal or 

split rail or City of Leander Planning Director approved equivalent 
 
X. Building Height 

 
A. Building heights shall be measured from the highest point of the finished floor elevation.  

In the case of split level foundations, the building height shall be measured from the 
highest finished floor elevation of such home. This measurement only applies to the 
Building Height Limitation of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.    

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  



9 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

Exhibit 1 
Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 

 



10 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

Exhibit  2 
Street Sections 

 
 

 
 

 
  



11 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Intentionally Blank) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



13 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

Exhibit  3 
Architectural Styles 

 

 
 

 
 

 



14 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 



15 Planned Unit Development | Bryson 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 04, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-022: Consider action on the rezoning of several 

tracts of land generally located 1,350 feet east from the northeast 
corner from the intersection of N. Bagdad Rd. and Old 2243 W. for 
28.5 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R393879, R393878, 
R393877, R393876, R393875. Currently, the property is zoned 
HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and the applicant is proposing to 
zone the property GC-4-D (General Commercial) and MF-2-B 
(Multi-Family) districts, Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Bruce Nakfoor on behalf of MLMH LTD. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of staff recommendation for 
GC-3-C (General Commercial) for the first 300 feet north of Old 
2243 West and the remainder to MF-2-B (Multi-Family).  The City 
Council unanimously approved the Planning & Zoning 
Commission recommendation at the August 21, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Aerial Map  
 4.  Proposed Zoning 
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis 
 Development Services Director  08/22/2014 
 



Attachment #1                

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-022 

Old 2243 Mixed Use 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: MLMH LTD 
 
Current Zoning: HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) 
    
Proposed Zoning: GC-4-D (General Commercial); MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is approximately 1,350 feet east from the northeast corner 

from the intersection of N. Bagdad Rd. and Old 2243 W. for 28.5 acres 
more or less. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Homes: Estates of North Creek 
Ranch Subdivision 

EAST SFU-2-B   Proposed Mini-Storage Facility 

SOUTH 
GC-3-C 

 SFU-2-B 
 HC-4-D 

Leander Veterinary Clinic 
Developed Single Family Home 
Vacant Property 

WEST HC-4-D Big and Safe Self Storage 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment #1                

 

      

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 

USE COMPONENT: 
 

MF – MULTI-FAMILY:   
Features:  Apartments (25 un./ac. if Type A; 18 un./ac. if Type B) 
Intent:  Development of multi-family dwelling structures. Such components are generally 

intended to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive uses 
such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  Such components are also intended to create 
more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the community but are intended to be 
utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to strictly multi-family residential 
development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) acres of contiguous land having 
a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification 
street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 
 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
 
 



Attachment #1                

 

TYPE 4 (non-residential only):   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 60% of primary building; drive-thru service; outdoor 

fueling and washing of vehicles; overhead service doors; maximum outdoor display; 
substantial outdoor storage; outdoor entertainment venues and animal boarding. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 4 site component is intended to be utilized in combination with GC, LI or HI 

components where appropriate for moderately intense outdoor site requirements and a need to 
utilize the outdoor site area for significant outdoor display, storage and accessory buildings and 
similar permitted uses. 

(2) This site component is intended only for industrial or heavy commercial uses and may be utilized 
only with GC, LI or HI use components.   

(3) This site component is not intended for retail or office development not requiring the available 
limits of outdoor storage and accessory buildings or adjacent to residential neighborhoods where 
not adequately buffered from residential uses. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 
 

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% (all stories); 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
TYPE D (non-residential only):   
Features:  35% masonry (60% street facing); metal siding for remainder not facing a street; 2 or 

more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) This architectural component is intended only for industrial warehouse, heavy commercial service 

and other similar applications and shall be utilized only with GC, HC or HI use components.  
(2) This component is not intended to be utilized with the majority of GC districts.   
(3) This component is not intended for retail or office development or adjacent to residential 

neighborhoods where not adequately buffered from residential uses.   
(4) This site component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized 

within industrial park development.   
 

  



Attachment #1                

 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) district to 
GC-4-D (General Commercial) district and MF-2-B (Multi-Family) district.  The intent of the 
applicant’s request is to provide a site that would support development for potential commercial 
pad sites and an area for an apartment complex development to the rear of the property. The GC-
4-D request is proposed to extend 300 ft back from the right-of-way line of Old 2243 W., and the 
remaining north tract of the property is proposed area to locate the MF-2-B zoning district. 
 
The intent statements for the General Commercial use component speaks to this component 
being located in high traffic areas and that access should be provided by an arterial street. Old 
2243 W. is designated as an arterial class street per the City’s Transportation Plan. 
 
The intent statement of the Type 4 site component speaks to being utilized only for industrial and 
heavy commercial uses, and may be utilized with GC, HC, or HI use components.  It also notes 
that it is to be utilized where appropriate for uses with moderately intense outdoor site 
requirements, and has the need for significant outdoor storage and display. The Type 4 
component is not intended to be utilized for office and retail uses that are inadequately buffered 
from residential uses. 
 
The Type 4 site component requires the following: 
 Unlimited outdoor display 
 Outdoor storage and container storage limited to sixty percent (60%) of the gross floor 

area of the primary building. 
 Accessory buildings/structures with square footage no greater than sixty percent (60%) of 

the gross floor area of the primary building 
 The combination of accessory buildings/structures and outdoor storage shall not exceed 

eighty percent (80%) of the gross floor area of the primary building. 
 Outdoor commercial fueling and washing of vehicles is permitted per Type 3 
 Outdoor animal boarding 
 Outdoor entertainment venues involving substantial outdoor facilities, noise generation, 

or amplified sound systems. 
 Overhead commercial service doors 

 
The intent statement of the Type D architectural component speaks to this component only being 
utilized for heavy commercial service or industrial warehousing.  It notes that it is not intended 
to be utilized with the majority of GC districts.  It is not intended for retail or office development 



Attachment #1                

 

adjacent to residential neighborhoods where not adequately buffered. This architectural 
component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized within an 
industrial park development. 
 
The Type D architectural component calls for the following: 
 35% of the exterior surface area of walls (all stories) are masonry 
 60% of the exterior surface area of all street facing walls are to be masonry (all stories) 
 Permits cementious fiber board or painted metal panel for remaining materials 
 Requires at least 2 design features visible from a public street or residential district. 
 Permits facilities that have no exterior walls as a primary use which exposes mechanical, 

electrical of other facilities. 
 
The intent statements for the Multi-Family use component speaks to being utilized as a buffer 
between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive  uses such as commercial uses or 
arterial roadways. It is intended to be utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to 
strictly multi-family development, with the goal seeking to avoid 25 contiguous acres or more.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 
 
The intent statement for the Type 2 site components identifies that it is to be utilized where non-
residential developments are adjacent to a residential district, or other more restrictive districts. It 
is to be utilized with developments not requiring the accessory structure or dwelling privileges of 
the Type 3 site component, and is generally not used with the HC and HI use components. 
 
The Type 2 site component requires the following: 
 Accessory buildings/structures with square footage not greater than ten percent (10%) of 

the gross floor area of the primary building. 
 Commercial outdoor animal boarding is permitted. 
 Outdoor entertainment venues with substantial outdoor facilities, noise generation, and 

amplified sound systems are prohibited. 
 Drive-through service lanes and drive-in service are permitted. 
 Outdoor display is prohibited 
 Outdoor storage and container storage are prohibited. 
 Outdoor fuel sales are prohibited. 
 At least 35% of the units of multi-family development are required to have at least one 

enclosed garage parking space, and parking areas shall be no wider than two parking 
modules wide. 

 
The intent statement for the Type B architectural component notes that it is intended to be 
utilized for the majority of residential development. It is to assist with harmonious land use 
transitions, and is to help raise the standards for non-residential property adjacent to residential 
uses or property that is more restrictive.  
 
The Type B architectural component calls for the following: 
 85% of the first surface area walls are required to be comprised of masonry. 
 50% of the exterior surface area walls (all stories) are to be comprised of masonry. 



Attachment #1                

 

 All building fronts shall have at least four different design features to break the wall 
plane. 

 Permits cementious fiber planking for the remaining exterior surface materials. 
 This architectural component would permit a maximum density of 18 units per acre for 

Multi-Family development. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to GC-4-D and MF-2-B, and staff is 
recommending approval of GC-3-C and MF-2-B.   The request for the GC-4-D district is seeking 
to maintain the site component and architectural requirements of the present zoning of the 
property. The Type 4 site component intent statement notes that it is to be utilized for industrial 
or heavy commercial uses, and that it should not be utilized with office or retail development 
without the need for the available limits of outdoor storage and accessory buildings.   
 
The Type 3 site component would be appropriate for commercial development at this location as 
it scales back the amount of outdoor display to 30% of the gross floor area for primary structures, 
and 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure for outdoor storage and container 
storage. Additionally, the Type 3 site component would limit outdoor entertainment venues that 
seek substantial outdoor facilities, unshielded stadium lighting, and noise generation. This would 
protect the future residents immediately north of the property adjacent to Old 2243 W. and the 
residents within the Estates of North Creek Ranch.  Additionally, the intent statements for the 
Type D architectural component note that it is only to be used with industrial park developments, 
and it’s not to be located along major thoroughfares.  Staff is recommending the Type C 
architectural component as it is appropriate for most uses permitted within the GC use 
component. 
 
The MF-2-B request meets the intent statements of the use component.  It meets the goal of 
avoiding contiguous tracts of 25 acres or less, and access to it would be provided on a collector 
or higher class thoroughfare (Old 2243 W.). 



BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

3A5D

5D

5D

5C

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

SA
BI

NA
S 

DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-022
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Old 2243 Mixed Use

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLDTOWNVILLAGE

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 1

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

ES
TA

NC
IA 

WA
Y

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R
CO

UL
EE

 D
R

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

BU
RG

ES
S D

R

OAKLAND CV

LOGUE CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-022 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Old 2243 Mixed Use



BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

3A

4C

5D

5D

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR SA

BI
NA

S 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-022
Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning Map
Old 2243 W Mixed Use

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

4D 4D 4D 4D 4D





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM HC-4-D (HEAVY COMMERCIAL) TO GC-4-D (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL AND MF-2-B (MULTI-FAMILY); MAKING FINDINGS 
OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcel of land being 28.5 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally 
described as Lots 5-9, Block A of the Replat of Lots 1-9, Block A of Leander 2243 Subdivision; 
more particularly described in Document Number 2001055146 of the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification numbers R393879, R393878, 
R393877, R393876, and R393875. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) to GC-4-D (General Commercial) for 
the first 300 feet north of Old 2243 W and MF-2-B (Multi-Family) for the remainder as shown in 
Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 21st day of August, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 4th day of September, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

3A

4C

5D

5D

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR SA

BI
NA

S 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-022
Current Zoning Map
Old 2243 W Mixed Use

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

300'



AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 

 
Executive Summary 

September 4, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing the 9.999 acres, more or 
less, Parker tract, located in Williamson County, Texas and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of 
fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and 
other related matters. 

  
Background:  Council approved the resolution setting the public hearings for this annexation on 
June 5, 2014.  The annexed property includes the Parker tract adjacent to the Reagan's Overlook 
subdivision.  The resolution set the two public hearing which were conducted on July 17, 2014 
and July 24, 2014.  The first reading of the ordinance was approved on August 21, 2014.  This is 
the second and final reading of the ordinance.  This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Ralph Reed on behalf of 162 Parker Ranch Holdings, LTD 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the second reading of the ordinance. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Parker Annexation Ordinance with exhibits 
2. Annexation schedule 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 8/27/2014 



 ORDINANCE NO. _______________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ANNEXING 9.999 ACRES OF 

LAND, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY, 
INCLUDING THE ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AT THE 
REQUEST OF THE PROPERTY OWNER; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE 
ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, is a home rule municipality authorized by State law to 
annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the property, as hereinafter described, made written request for the City 
to annex such property in compliance with the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is adjacent and contiguous to the present city limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant the owner’s request that the City annex 
said property; 
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this Ordinance in 
accordance with §43.063 of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published not more than twenty (20) nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  All portions of the following described property, including the abutting roadways and 
rights-of-way (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), not previously annexed into the City, 
are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 
 All portions of that certain tract or parcel of land being 9.999 acres, more or less, out of 

the Milton Hicks Survey, Abstract No. 287, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 



SECTION 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this Ordinance, 
made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and are 
further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those 
which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be and 
hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Leander. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established therefore. 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation proceedings 
for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is exempt 
from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 



provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the landowner(s) 
or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the plans 
and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will be 
provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water service, 

water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, by the 
utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such 
facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, 
conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the 
City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance 
and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request 
under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs 
and request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and 
such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the 
City’s water utility system. 



 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof as 
applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If 
connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the 
internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of facilities 
necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  
Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same 
terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of 
the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to 
time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its 
usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property owner requests and is able to connect to 
the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property and 
other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of 
the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and following 
installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city ordinance, 
including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic control devices 
and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public streets, roadways and 
rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 



  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 
construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore 
is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 
 (iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 

property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated 
after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in a 
similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  No 
additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same as 
similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in exhibits 
attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
PARKER, RED OAK VALLEY, SPRINGWOOD 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
June 5, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 17, 2014 and July 24, 2014; Council 
directs development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 16, 2014 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
July 2, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 9, 2014** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE; 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 17, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 24, 2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 21, 2014* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

September 4, 2014; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
 

Executive Summary 

  September 4, 2014  

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Crystal Falls Town 
Center – Lot 3 – Block “A” Water and Wastewater Improvements 
 
Background:  The water and wastewater improvements required for the Crystal Falls Town 
Center have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for this acceptance have been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated on September 4, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through September 4, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Crystal Falls 
Town Center – Lot 3 – Block “A” Water and Wastewater Improvements 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 























AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

September 4, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Grand Mesa at Crystal 
Falls Section 7 Water Line Extension 
 
Background:  The water line extension improvements required for Grand Mesa at Crystal 
Falls Section 7 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for this acceptance have been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated on September 4, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through September 4, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Grand Mesa 
at Crystal Falls Section 7 Water Extension Improvements 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

























AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

September 4, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Grand Mesa at Crystal 
Falls II Section 7A, Water, Streets and Drainage Improvements 
 
Background:  The water, streets and drainage improvements required for Grand Mesa at 
Crystal Falls Section 7A were installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed 
as of March 2013 with the exception of the County Road 290 (CR 290) street improvements.  
The Maintenance Bond warranty period for these improvements will be considered to have 
commenced its two year term upon receipt of all acceptance documents as evidenced on 
March 12, 2013 and will provide warranty and maintenance coverage through March 12, 
2015.  The Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any defects are corrected prior 
to expiration of the bond. The CR 290 Street improvements have since been installed, 
inspected and found to be satisfactorily completed.  Furthermore, all documentation required 
for acceptance has been received.  The Maintenance Bond for the CR 290 improvements will 
commence its two year term upon City Council acceptance, as anticipated on September 4, 
2014 and will be effective for a period of two (2) years.  The Engineering Department will 
perform a formal inspection of the improvements approximately 30 days prior to the 
expiration of the Maintenance Bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Grand Mesa 
at Crystal Falls II Section 7A, Water, Streets and Drainage Improvements with separate 
warranty period expirations as described above. 
   
Attachments:   Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates for both the subdivision improvements and CR 290 extension. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 











































AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

September 4, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Vista Ridge, Phase 2 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Vista Ridge, Phase 
2, have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on September 4, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through September 4, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Vista Ridge, Phase 2. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 































AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

September 4, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Villas at Vista Ridge 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Villas at Vista 
Ridge, have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated on September 4, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through September 4, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Villas at Vista Ridge. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

































AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 04, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-023: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a 0.07 acre tract of land, more or less, generally 
located 1,300 feet from the northeast corner of the intersection of 
Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and County Road 177; WCAD Parcel 
R496905. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFS-2-B (Single 
Family Suburban) district, and the applicant is proposing to zone 
the property LO-2-B (Local Office) district, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: John Zamora on behalf of RockPointe Church. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the August 
28, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 4. Aerial Map  
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
 7. Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission August 28, 2014 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis 
 Development Services Director  08/28/2014 
 



Attachment #1                

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-023 

Cell Tower at RockPointe Church 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: RockPointe Church 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family Suburban) 
    
Proposed Zoning: LO-2-B (Local Office) 
 
Size and Location: The property is approximately 1,160 feet east from the northeast corner 

from the intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. and County Road 177 
for 0.07 acres more or less. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH Interim SFS-2-B RockPointe Church detention ponds 

EAST Interim SFS-2-B   Developed single family home 

SOUTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed single family home 

WEST Interim SFS-2-B Vacant property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment #1                

 

     

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 

USE COMPONENT: 
 

LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   
Features:  Office, assisted living, day care. Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-

Thurs., 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 
Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 

located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 
 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 
 

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% (all stories); 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
 

  



Attachment #1                

 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the subject property from Interim SFS-2-B to LO-2-B. The 
intent of the applicant’s request is to permit the use of a new wireless communication facility.  
This request to rezone the property is the first step the applicant will undergo to develop the site.  
Pending the approval of this request, the applicant will then be required to submit a development 
plan that will go before the Planning Commission and City Council for approval.  If the 
applicant’s development plan is approved, then the applicant would then be able to submit site 
development and building permits to construct the facility. 
 
The subject property to be rezoned is located approximately 1,160 feet east of the intersection of 
Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. and County Road 177, and is within the purview of a community center 
node (with the center of the node sited at the intersection of E. Crystal Falls Pkwy and Ronald 
W. Reagan Blvd).  The community center node is approximately one half mile in diameter and 
seeks the balance of land use mix listed in Table 1. 
 
Table 1: 
 

Land Use Percent of Node 
Community Commercial/Retail 30% 

Office 15% 
Multi-Family 20% 

High Density Single-Family 35% 
 
The existing community center node is comprised of the following land use mix listed Table 2. 
 
Table 2: 
 

Land Use Percent of Node 
Community Commercial/Retail 15% 

Office 0% 
Multi-Family 2% 

Low Density Single-Family 57% 
Industrial 1% 

OCL (outside of city limit) 12% 
ROW 13% 

 



Attachment #1                

 

The comparison between Table 1 and Table 2 illustrate that the balance of land uses is deficient 
across all categories for the community center node’s target land use mixes.   
 
Additionally, the intent statement of the local office use component speaks to access being 
provided by a collector or higher classification street, and that the component is intended to help 
provide for land use transitions from local or general commercial or from arterial to residential 
development. The LO use component is the most restrictive use component that would permit a 
wireless communication facility. 
 
The intent statements for the Type 2 site component speaks to being utilized with non-residential 
districts that are adjacent to a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce 
potential negative impacts to the more restrictive district, and to provide for an orderly transition 
of development intensity.  
 
The Type 2 site component permits the following: 
 
 Accessory buildings/structures with square footage not greater than ten percent (10%) of 

the gross floor area of the primary building. 
 Commercial outdoor animal boarding is permitted. 
 Outdoor entertainment venues with substantial outdoor facilities, noise generation, and 

amplified sound systems are prohibited. 
 Drive-through service lanes and drive-in service are permitted. 
 Outdoor display is prohibited 
 Outdoor storage and container storage are prohibited. 
 Outdoor fuel sales are prohibited. 

 
The Type B architectural component is paired appropriately with the applicant’s request for a 
Local Office district.  The component is intended to assist with harmonious land use transitions, 
and it requires 85% masonry on the first story with 50% masonry on all other stories.  The 
component also requires a minimum of 4 architectural design features.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends approval of the applicants request to rezone the property from Interim SFS-2-
B to LO-2-B.  The request meets the intent of the comprehensive plan’s future land use map, and 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance’s site and architectural components.   



CATALINA RANCH

2A

3B

3B

2A

2A

2A

3D

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A 2A

2A

2B

CR 177

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-023
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Cell Tower: RockPointe Church

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CATALINA RANCH

2A

3B

3B

2A

2A

2A

3D

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A 2A

2A

2B

CR 177

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-023
Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
Cell Tower: RockPointe Church

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Proposed LO-2-B



COLD SPRINGS, SEC 1

CR 177

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-023 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Cell Tower RockPointe Church



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5

msiwek
Typewritten Text





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PORTION OF A PARCEL OF 
LAND FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO LO-2-B 
(LOCAL OFFICE); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 0.07 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibits “A” 
and “B”, legally described as 0.07 acres out of the Anastasia Carr Survey, Abstract 122; more 
particularly described in Document Number 2008020579 of the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification numbers R496905. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to LO-2-B (Local Office) as 
shown in Exhibits “A” and “B”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 4th day of September, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 18th day of September, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2A
3B

2A

2A

3D

2A

2A

2A

2A 2A

CR 177

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-023
Cell Tower: RockPointe Church

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation









AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 4, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Standard Professional Services Agreement 
and Task Order MSE-1 with M&S Engineering, LLC, for professional services for East 
Street Roadway Improvements 
 
Background:  Task Order MSE-1 will provide for professional services for design, 
advertising, bidding, and construction phase services for East Street Roadway 
Improvements from RM 2243 to the south bank of South Brushy Creek.  The 
improvements will consist of approximately 1,250 linear feet of two lane roadway with 
curb and gutter, storm sewers, sidewalks, street lights, and landscaping   Compensation 
for this work is a combination of the lump sum amount of $76,500.00 for design, 
advertising, and bidding services and time and materials not to exceed $13,500.00 for 
construction phase services for a combined total of $90,000.00 as detailed in Task Order 
MSE-1 with its attached Scope of Services.  The City’s Standard Professional Services 
Agreement is also attached and is required as part of establishing this contractual 
relationship. 
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $90,000.00 from General Purpose CIP Fund, GL# TBD 
- 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization of the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute Task Order MSE-1 and the Standard Professional Services Agreement. 
 
Attachments:  Task Oder MSE-1 and Standard Professional Services Agreement 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 



















































AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 4, 2014 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of a Joint Venture with the City of Cedar Park 
for Interim Raw Water Intake Facilities Relocation Activities for Phase C which consists 
of Engineering Services and Easement Acquisition 
  
Background:   On August 20, 2009, during a period of severe drought, the City Council 
considered and approved “authorization of the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
agreement(s) with Cedar Park as required for Phase 1 of the interim relocation of raw 
water intake facilities”.  The attached Letter of Intent and Term Sheet, dated August 25, 
2009, was approved and executed by the City Manager in early September of 2009.   
 
The follow-up Interlocal Agreement called for in the Letter of Intent was never prepared 
and executed due to significant rains in the Lake Travis Basin beginning in early October 
of 2009.  As a result, the construction project was shelved, but acquisition of project 
easements continued to completion. 
 
On August 4, 2011, City Council considered and approved “participation in the Floating 
Raw Water Intake Contingency Project: Phase A Underwater Pipeline Project in 
accordance with the approved Letter of Intent for Cost Share Agreement for Pipeline and 
Rented Floating Raw Water Intake”, due to the preceding nine months being classified as 
the worst nine month drought period on record.  LCRA’s water level forecasts for Lake 
Travis indicated a 10% chance of reaching the 620’ level by June of 2012.  The City’s (at 
that time owned by LCRA) Sandy Creek raw water barge ceased to function at 620’.  
After acquiring the Sandy Creek facilities from LCRA, the City of Leander modified the 
raw water barge and pumps to allow operation down to a lake level as low as 615’.  
Cedar Park subsequently modified their raw water barge and pumps to allow operation to 
a lake level of 615’.   
 
With the completion of the BCRUA Deep Water Intake at least eight to ten years away, 
the severity of the drought, the record low inflows into the Highland Lakes, and the long 
seven to eight month lead time required to fabricate and install the proposed 42-inch 



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

HDPE underwater pipeline, the City Councils of both Cedar Park (July 28, 2011) and 
Leander (August 4, 2011) mutually agreed that we must begin the pipeline construction 
process, based on competitive sealed bids, to place the underwater pipeline in accordance 
with the terms of the executed August 25, 2009, Letter of Intent and Term Sheet.   
 
As Phase A work progressed, the record drought continued unabated; and the Lake Travis 
water level decline accelerated.  As a result of the accelerating decline in water levels and 
insufficient time for the competitive sealed bid process, the City Council of Cedar Park 
authorized emergency purchase procedures for Phase B project activities, which included 
acquisition of raw water pumps, motor control centers, interim raw water barge, power 
cables, appurtenances, and required engineering and construction services.  Phase A of 
the project was completed and parts of Phase B were completed before a modest recovery 
in Lake Travis levels resulted in suspension of the project. 
 
The previously executed August 25, 2009, Letter of Intent and Term Sheet, which 
commits Leander to 30.4% of the cost of both Phase A and Phase B, was reaffirmed by 
Leander City Council on October 18, 2012.  Both the Phase A project (42” underwater 
raw water pipeline and appurtenances) and Phase B project (raw water barge, pumps, 
controls, and appurtenances) have been completed, tested, and readied for service down 
to a record low lake level of 590’.  Leander’s share of the project costs to date is 
$3,831,434.99. Additional costs for on-going raw water barge power costs, maintenance 
costs, refinement of controls and SCADA system, 2 megawatt back-up generator 
rental/purchase ($5,269/mo) estimated at $250,000 are expected in the coming year.  
 
If the drought continues unabated through this year and 2015/2016, the possibility exists 
that the lake level could go below 590’ in 2106 resulting in the end of operation of the 
Phase B raw water barge system.  As a result, planning and engineering activities have 
begun for Phase C of the Raw Water Contingency Project, which will extend an 
additional raw water pipeline to the main channel of the Colorado River in Lake Travis 
and add a second raw water barge pumping to the existing Phase B raw water barge (used 
as a booster pumping station) allowing operations to continue to a lake level of 560’.  
Although the estimated cost of Phase C is preliminarily estimated at $7M for Leander 
should the drought reach catastrophic proportions, the current activities involve only 
preliminary engineering, surveying, legal services, easement acquisition costs, and 
related activities.  Leander’s share of these costs may approach $300,000.  The first 
invoice for these Phase C activities totaling $70,965.82 has been received.  The long lead 
times to acquire easement rights required to locate the Phase C raw water line and barge 
within Lake Travis mandate that the preliminary engineering and easement acquisition 
activities be completed as soon as possible.  Leander’s 30.4% share of these costs is 
estimated to be up to $300,000, but this cost could vary significantly depending on 
unknowns such as litigation costs.  
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:   $300,000 from Water Maintenance Fund GL# 20-02-8385 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

Recommendation:   Staff requests authorization of expenditures for Phase C of the Raw 
Water Intake Contingency Project for preliminary engineering, surveying, legal services, 
and easement acquisition costs in an amount not to exceed to $300,000. 
 
Attachments:   August 25, 2009, Letter of Intent and Term Sheet and Cedar Park Invoice 
for Phase C 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 





























































AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

September 4, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of PEC Transmission Facilities Relocation 
Contract for Hero Way (Old 2243 West) Roadway Improvements Project 
 
Background:   This proposed Transmission Facilities Relocation Project is required in 
order to construct the proposed undivided five lane roadway improvements for Hero Way 
(currently Old 2243 West) from U.S. Hwy. 183 to Lakeline Boulevard.  In depth 
coordination between PEC, City Staff, and the City’s roadway design team (HDR) has 
determined the minimum number of relocations required to construct the roadway 
project.  With an anticipated bid date in February of 2015, final engineering design and 
the ordering of long lead time items such as transmission line structures (poles), 
conductors, and appurtenances must commence.  The $989,604.00 cost of this relocation 
project is an estimated cost based on the Preliminary Engineering Report attached to the 
Transmission Facilities Relocation Contract.  The City of Leander will be responsible for 
the actual final cost of relocation, which may be higher or lower than the initial contract 
amount of $989,604.00.   
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:   $989,604.00 from GL# 40-04-8385 (to be reimbursed by 
anticipated 2015 bond proceeds) 
 
Recommendation:   Staff requests authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute the PEC Transmission Facilities Relocation Contract for Hero Way (Old 2243 
West) Roadway Improvements Project titled “RELOCATE FACILITIES CONTRACT”, dated 
July 29, 2014. 
 
Attachments:   “RELOCATE FACILITIES CONTRACT” and Preliminary Engineering Report 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 







































AGENDA ITEM # 18 
 

 

Executive Summary 

September 4, 2014 

Council Agenda Subject: Resolution Authorizing Participation in a Coalition of Similarly 
Situated Cities in Proceedings Before the Railroad Commission of Texas and the Texas 
Legislature Related to the City’s Authority To Effectively Review And Regulate Utility Rates. 

 
Background:  Current Texas statutes guarantee Texas cities local control over gas utility rates 
by recognizing their exclusive original jurisdiction over such rates within each city.  Texas law 
also guarantees that utilities must reimburse cities for the reasonable expenses that cities incur 
while participating in gas ratemaking proceedings both at the City level and before the Railroad 
Commission of Texas (the “RRC”).  On July 25, 2014, the RRC published in the Texas Register 
three new proposed rules that would greatly diminish, if not entirely eliminate, the City’s ability 
to ensure that utility rate increases are reasonable by:  1) Requiring that cities fund all rate case 
expenses out of their own budgets that were incurred while investigating and challenging gas rate 
increases that utilities propose to the RRC before receiving any reimbursement of expenses the 
RRC finds reasonable; and 2) Restricting cities’ ability to meaningfully participate in ratemaking 
proceedings before the RRC by severely and arbitrarily limiting the number of requests for 
information a city may request from the utility when it proposes an increase in rates. 
 For the last decade or so, the City has participated in a coalition of cities known as the 
Atmos Texas Municipalities (“ATM”) whose purpose is to investigate gas utilities’ proposed rate 
increases and challenge them where appropriate.  ATM has been active in most, if not all, major 
ratemaking proceedings that affect ratepayers in the City.   
 
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  $1,250.  The City’s cost would be apportioned among the member 
cities in ATM based on each city’s number of meters in the City relative to the overall number of 
meters in all the ATM cities. These fees would cover the cost of preparing comments to submit 
to the Railroad Commission in opposition to the Railroad Commission’s proposed rule and retain 
legislative-advocacy to assist in meetings with members of the legislature to support those 
efforts. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of Resolution 
 
Attachments:  Resolution; correspondence 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



Fees Related to Rulemaking at Railroad Commission of Texas:  $25,000

Fee/Meter City No. of Mtrs Allocation City No. of Mtrs Allocation City No. of Mtrs Allocation City No. of Mtrs Allocation
$0.08 Austin 7512 $575.00 Fredericksburg 3617 $275.00 Kerens 486 $50.00 Riesel 149 $25.00
$0.08 Balch Springs 3134 $225.00 Gatesville 2337 $175.00 Lampasas 1775 $125.00 Rockdale 1261 $100.00
$0.08 Bandera 316 $25.00 Georgetown 14780 $1,125.00 Lancaster 5018 $375.00 Rogers 245 $25.00
$0.08 Bartlett 483 $50.00 Glen Rose 495 $50.00 Leander 6040 $475.00 Round Rock 8952 $675.00
$0.08 Belton 2159 $175.00 Goldthwaite 665 $50.00 Lometa 166 $25.00 San Angelo 21848 $1,675.00
$0.08 Blooming Grove 259 $25.00 Granbury 1600 $125.00 Longview 8569 $650.00 Sanger 1306 $100.00
$0.08 Bryan 17986 $1,375.00 Greenville 6834 $525.00 Marble Falls 1024 $75.00 Somerville 338 $25.00
$0.08 Burnet 1339 $100.00 Groesbeck 884 $75.00 Mart 624 $50.00 Star Harbor 182 $25.00
$0.08 Cameron 1545 $125.00 Hamilton 1127 $75.00 Mexia 1506 $125.00 Trinidad 223 $25.00
$0.08 Cedar Park 12570 $975.00 Heath 1747 $150.00 Olney 1424 $100.00 Whitney 468 $50.00
$0.08 Clifton 971 $75.00 Henrietta 956 $75.00 Point 128 $25.00
$0.08 Commerce 1705 $125.00 Hickory Creek 854 $75.00 Pflugerville 12922 $975.00
$0.08 Copperas Cove 4119 $325.00 Hico 416 $50.00 Princeton 570 $50.00
$0.08 Corsicana 6160 $475.00 Hillsboro 1836 $150.00 Ranger 650 $50.00
$0.08 Denton 20439 $1,550.00 Hutto 1191 $100.00 Rice 94 $25.00
$0.08 Electra 878 $75.00 Jacksboro 0 $0.00

81575 $6,275.00 39339 $3,075.00 40996 $3,175.00 34972 $2,725.00 $15,250.00
TOTAL 196882 $0.08 $15,000.00

Fees Related to2015 Legislative Session:  $25,000

City No. of Mtrs Allocation City No. of Mtrs Allocation City No. of Mtrs Allocation City No. of Mtrs Allocation
$0.13 Austin 7512 $950.00 Fredericksburg 3617 $450.00 Kerens 486 $50.00 Riesel 149 $25.00
$0.13 Balch Springs 3134 $400.00 Gatesville 2337 $300.00 Lampasas 1775 $225.00 Rockdale 1261 $150.00
$0.13 Bandera 316 $50.00 Georgetown 14780 $1,875.00 Lancaster 5018 $650.00 Rogers 245 $25.00
$0.13 Bartlett 483 $50.00 Glen Rose 495 $50.00 Leander 6040 $775.00 Round Rock 8952 $1,125.00
$0.13 Belton 2159 $275.00 Goldthwaite 665 $75.00 Lometa 166 $25.00 San Angelo 21848 $2,775.00
$0.13 Blooming Grove 259 $50.00 Granbury 1600 $200.00 Longview 8569 $1,100.00 Sanger 1306 $175.00
$0.13 Bryan 17986 $2,275.00 Greenville 6834 $875.00 Marble Falls 1024 $125.00 Somerville 338 $50.00
$0.13 Burnet 1339 $175.00 Groesbeck 884 $125.00 Mart 624 $75.00 Star Harbor 182 $25.00
$0.13 Cameron 1545 $200.00 Hamilton 1127 $150.00 Mexia 1506 $200.00 Trinidad 223 $25.00
$0.13 Cedar Park 12570 $1,600.00 Heath 1747 $225.00 Olney 1424 $175.00 Whitney 468 $50.00
$0.13 Clifton 971 $125.00 Henrietta 956 $125.00 Point 128 $25.00
$0.13 Commerce 1705 $225.00 Hickory Creek 854 $100.00 Pflugerville 12922 $1,650.00
$0.13 Copperas Cove 4119 $525.00 Hico 416 $50.00 Princeton 570 $75.00
$0.13 Corsicana 6160 $775.00 Hillsboro 1836 $225.00 Ranger 650 $75.00
$0.13 Denton 20439 $2,600.00 Hutto 1191 $150.00 Rice 94 $25.00
$0.13 Electra 878 $100.00 Jacksboro 0 $0.00

81575 $10,375.00 39339 $4,975.00 40996 $5,250.00 34972 $4,425.00 $25,025.00
TOTAL 196882 $0.13 $25,000.00

Atmos Texas Municipalities

Atmos Texas Municipalities



1 of 3 

13Bullet Points in Response to Proposed RRC Rules 
 
THE RAILROAD COMMISSION IS PUSHING CITIES ASIDE AND MAKING IT 
EASIER FOR GAS UTILITIES TO INCREASE RATES: 

• The Railroad Commission of Texas (RRC) recently proposed rules that would 
practically eliminate cities’ ability to review and challenge gas rate hikes.   

• The RRC’s staff claims that “[t]hese rules are intended to reduce rate-case 
expenses and promote the efficient resolution of cases.” 

• In reality, the RCC’s proposed rules gut cities’ ability to effectively challenge 
rates and allow utilities to get higher rates with little opposition. 

• Specifically, the rules propose: 

o Removing the utility’s statutory obligation to reimburse cities 
their reasonable rate case expenses and requiring that cities pay 
up front before being able to seek reimbursement; 

o Charging most rate case expenses only to ratepayers in cities that 
challenged the utility’s proposed rate increase at the RRC; 

 This encourages “free-riders” by requiring that some cities pay 
for rate cases and then giving all other ratepayers the benefit of 
the rate reductions obtained by the active cities without having 
to bear any of the cost of the rate case. 

 This discourages cities from challenging rate increases for fear 
of being “stuck with the bill.” 

o Forcing all cities to act as a single party unless they can convince 
the RRC staff to allow separate groups. 

 City groups forced together would not be able to each choose 
their own legal representative. 

 City groups forced together could result in more unwieldy 
groups with fewer common interests. 

o Limiting discovery in the interest of “efficiency and justice.” 

 Currently: 

• There are no default discovery limits and the RRC staff 
in the case already has the discretion to place 
limitations on discovery as may be necessary given the 
number and complexity of issue involved in the case.   

 Under the proposed rule: 

• The utility would not be required to respond to more 
than 600 requests for information, including sub-parts 
to the requests from all parties other than the RRC staff  



2 of 3 

• The default discovery limit would be the same for every 
case, regardless of how much information is involved or 
how much money is at stake, or how many issues are 
involved or how complex the issues may be. 

• All requests for information a city may have asked while 
the case was being reviewed at the city level would 
count toward the arbitrary cap of 600 requests for 
information.   

o If a city asks 600 or more questions at the city 
level, the city would be barred from further 
inquiry once the RRC has authority, that is, on 
appeal to the RRC. 

o This is a clear infringement on cities’ original 
jurisdiction by punishing them on appeal if they 
rigorously questioned a utility’s proposed rate 
increase at the city level.   

THE CURRENT SYSTEM WORKS: 

• Gas utilities are monopolies.  Customers cannot pick and choose which 
utility delivers the gas to them and the Cities as the “regulatory authority” 
with original jurisdiction and the RRC on appeal, are supposed to set the 
utility’s rates to make sure the utility has a reasonable opportunity to earn a 
reasonable return on its investment.  

• State law guarantees cities the right to participate in Railroad 
Commission rate cases, and requires that the utility reimburse the 
cities’ related expenses.  

o The utility ultimately passes on all rate-case expenses found 
reasonable to ratepayers, including the cost of city participation.  
However, ratepayers benefit from cities’ efforts to challenge 
unreasonable rate increases. 

• Texas cities have already voluntarily formed their own coalitions to 
ensure that they speak with a united voice where their interests are aligned, 
and to avoid redundant costs when they examine and challenge utilities’ 
proposals to increase rates.  And even when more than one city or city group 
is involved in a rate case, the city/city groups coordinate their presentations 
to as to avoid duplication of effort. 

• The RRC already has a rule that prohibits discovery abuses.  Despite this 
long-standing rule, there have been few complaints and very few (if any) 
sanctions. 

CITIES’ ROBUST PARTICIPATION HAS DRAMATICALLY REDUCED RATES: 

• In one case, cities helped reveal that utilities were charging ratepayers for 
more than $1 million dollars in luxury items including meals that cost as 



3 of 3 

much as $400 per person; a case of merlot; and hotel stays for as much as 
$950 a night. 

o Utilities can buy their employees expensive treats.  That’s great.  
But ratepayers do not benefit from those costs in any way, so the RRC 
should not force them to pay for it. 

• In another case, cities convinced the RRC to reject $42 million in 
unreasonable or imprudently incurred costs that a utility wanted to charge to 
ratepayers. 

• If the proposed rules were adopted, cities would be less likely to identify and 
successfully oppose similar unreasonable rate increases. 

CITIES’ ROBUST PARTICIPATION HAS COST RELATIVELY LITTLE: 

• Challenging utility rate increases can be time-consuming and expensive. 

o But it would be a lot more expensive in the higher rates customers 
would pay if cities didn’t scrutinize utility proposals and challenge any 
unreasonable costs. 

o The RRC staff’s proposal would “promote efficient resolution” of 
utility rate hikes, but “efficiently” resolving a case under the RRC’s 
proposed rules means less scrutiny. 

THE LEGISLATURE ALREADY REJECTED THE RRC’S BAD IDEA: 

• The Legislature has previously rejected efforts to restrict cities from fully 
participating in rate cases.   

• Just like the proposed rule, HB 1148 in the 2013 Legislative Session 
proposed that cities pay rate case expenses out of their budgets before 
getting reimbursed.  But HB 1148 never even made it to a vote in committee. 

• H.B. 1677 went even farther to completely eliminate cities’ ability to recover 
the cost of fighting utility rate proposals.  H.B. 1677 also failed. 

THE RRC’S PROPOSAL IS A SYMPTOM OF PROBLEMS THE SUNSET 
COMMISSION ALREADY ACKNOWLEDGED: 

• In 2013, the Sunset Commission pointed out several problems with the RRC.  
One of these problems was that the staff examiners in RRC rate cases are RRC 
staff members, who “answer to the elected Commissioners who receive 
campaign contributions from many of the industry parties in these cases.”  
The Sunset Commission pointed out that “[t]his relationship can create the 
perception of bias towards the industry…”   

• RRC staff proposed a rule that would prevent cities’ ability to challenge utility 
rate hikes.  The proposal is similar to utility-friendly/ratepayer-hostile 
legislative bills that failed.  RRC staff claims its proposal seeks to reduce 
expenses, but really, it’s a gift to utilities that would shove cities out of the 
way and lead to less scrutiny and predictably higher rates. 



1 of 2 
Railroad Commission Proposed Rules 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 
ITEM NO. ____________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Current Texas statutes guarantee Texas cities strong local control over gas utility rates by 
recognizing their exclusive original jurisdiction over such rates within each city.  Texas 
law also guarantees that utilities must reimburse cities for the reasonable expenses that 
cities incur while participating in gas ratemaking proceedings both at the City level and 
before the Railroad Commission of Texas (the “RRC”).  On July 25, 2014, the RRC 
published in the Texas Register three new proposed rules that would greatly diminish, if 
not entirely eliminate, the City’s ability to ensure that utility rate increases are reasonable 
by: 
 

1. Requiring that cities fund all rate case expenses out of their own budgets 
that were incurred while investigating and challenging gas rate increases 
that utilities propose to the RRC before receiving any reimbursement of 
expenses the RRC finds reasonable; and 
 

2. Restricting cities’ ability to meaningfully participate in ratemaking 
proceedings before the RRC by severely and arbitrarily limiting the 
number of requests for information a city may request from the utility 
when it proposes an increase in rates. 

 
COALITION OF MUNICIPALITIES  
 
For the last decade or so, the City has participated in a coalition of cities known as the 
Atmos Texas Municipalities (“ATM”) whose purpose is to investigate gas utilities’ 
proposed rate increases and challenge them where appropriate.  ATM has been active in 
most, if not all, major ratemaking proceedings that affect ratepayers in the City.   
 
 
 
COST 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE ACTIVITIES OF THE ALLIANCE 
OF ATMOS TEXAS MUNICIPALITIES (“ATM”) AND OTHER 
SIMILARLY SITUATED COALITIONS OF MUNICIPALITIES 
OPPOSING RULES PROPOSED BY THE RAILROAD COMMISSION 
OF TEXAS BENEFITING THE UTILITY INDUSTRY THAT IF 
ADOPTED WOULD GREATLY DIMINISH CITIES’ ABILITY TO 
EFFECTIVELY AND MEANINGFULLY EVALUATE AND 
CHALLENGE A UTILITY’S PROPOSAL TO INCREASE ITS RATES. 



2 of 2 
Railroad Commission Proposed Rules 

The City’s cost for participation in this effort would be apportioned among the member 
cities in ATM based on each city’s number of meters in the City relative to the overall 
number of meters in all the ATM cities; the attached spreadsheet shows these amounts.  
These fees would cover the cost of preparing comments to submit to the Railroad 
Commission in opposition to the Railroad Commission’s proposed rule and retain 
legislative-advocacy to assist in meetings with members of the legislature to support 
those efforts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City should participate as a member of ATM and thereby join ATM’s efforts to 
oppose the RRC’s proposed rules and any similar legislation that would:  undermine the 
City’s ratemaking jurisdiction and its ability to question and challenge unreasonable rate 
increases; allow for processes that do not permit a complete and thorough review of 
utilities’ alleged capital expenditures and operating expenses; or restrict cities’ ability to 
participate in the rate-setting process; and support ATM’s efforts to preserve cities’ 
original jurisdiction over utility ratemaking.  Participation in ATM’s coalition would 
promote and preserve the City’s statutory right to fully participate in utility ratemaking 
proceedings and ensure just and reasonable utility rates and adequate and reliable utility 
service. 



 
1 of 4 

ATM Railroad Commission Resolution 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S 
PARTICIPATION IN A COALITION OF SIMILARLY 
SITUATED CITIES IN PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE 
RAILROAD COMMISSION OF TEXAS AND THE TEXAS 
LEGISLATURE RELATED TO THE CITY’S AUTHORITY 
TO EFFECTIVELY REVIEW AND REGULATE UTILITY 
RATES; FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE 
MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED 
WAS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 
THE TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT; MAKING OTHER 
FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE 
SUBJECT; AND DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, hereinafter referred to as “City,” is a member of 

Atmos Texas Municipalities (“ATM”); and,  

WHEREAS, ATM has participated in utility ratemaking proceedings before the Railroad 

Commission of Texas; and, 

WHEREAS, ATM has participated in legislative proceedings before the Texas 

Legislature; and, 

WHEREAS, as recently as in the 83rd Regular Session of the Texas Legislature, the 

Legislature considered and rejected legislation that if enacted, would have negatively affected 

municipalities’ original jurisdiction to regulate a utility’s rates, services, and operations in the 

City; and, 

WHEREAS, as recently as the 83rd Regular Session of the Texas Legislature in 2013, the 

Legislature considered and rejected legislation that if enacted, would have negatively affected 

municipalities’ ability to undertake a meaningful evaluation of a utility’s request to increase gas 

rates and effectively challenge unreasonable rate increases; and, 

WHEREAS, the Railroad Commission of Texas has initiated proceedings to adopt new 

rules whose effect would be similar to the restrictions that the Legislature rejected in its 83rd 

Regular Session; and, 



 
2 of 4 

ATM Railroad Commission Resolution 

WHEREAS, the rules the Railroad Commission of Texas proposed would diminish, if 

not altogether eliminate, Texas cities’ original ratemaking jurisdiction over gas utilities and 

cities’ ability to meaningfully review a gas utility’s request to increase its rates; and, 

WHEREAS, the City supports ATM’s and other similarly situated coalitions of cities’ 

opposition to proposed rules or laws that would diminish and/or eliminate municipalities’ ability 

to effectively regulate gas utility rates or to meaningfully participate in contested proceedings 

before the Railroad Commission of Texas; and,  

WHEREAS, as the Legislature noted in Section 101.002 of the Gas Utility Regulatory 

Act, utilities are by definition monopolies in the areas they serve and as a result, the normal 

forces of competition that regulate prices in a free enterprise society do not operate and therefore, 

public agencies, including the City, regulate utility rates, operations, and services as a substitute 

for competition; and, 

WHEREAS, gas utilities continue to be monopolies whose rates are not governed by the 

normal forces of competition; and, 

WHEREAS, to provide fair, just, and reasonable rates and adequate and efficient 

services, Section 103.001 of the Gas Utility Regulatory Act grants the City exclusive original 

jurisdiction over the rates, operations, and services of a gas utility within the municipality; and, 

WHEREAS, under Section 103.001 of the Gas Utility Regulatory Act passed by the 

Texas Legislature into law, a municipality regulating a gas utility has the right to require gas 

utilities to submit information as necessary for the municipality to make a reasonable 

determination of the utility’s actual rate base, expenses, investment, and rate of return for 

providing its services and to retain personnel necessary to make the determination of reasonable 

rates; and, 

WHEREAS, under Section 103.022 of the Gas Utility Regulatory Act, a municipality 

participating in or conducting a ratemaking proceeding may engage rate consultants, 

accountants, auditors, attorneys, and engineers to fully evaluate a utility’s request to change rates 

and the gas utility in the ratemaking proceeding shall reimburse the municipality its reasonable 

rate case expenses; and, 



 
3 of 4 

ATM Railroad Commission Resolution 

WHEREAS, in order to ensure the reasonableness of gas utility rates and ensure the 

adequacy of gas utility service by preserving cities’ right to effectively investigate and challenge 

utility-proposed rate increases both before the City and before any state agency that is authorized 

to regulate gas utilities’ rates;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the findings set out in the preamble to this resolution are hereby in all things 

approved and adopted. 

Section 2.  The City directs ATM to oppose rules or legislation that would: 

• Eliminate or reduce the ability of incorporated municipalities to exercise their 
statutorily guaranteed original jurisdiction over gas utility rates. 

 
• Allow the approval of increases in rates without a complete and thorough 

review of a utility’s capital expenditures or operating expenses by cities 
representing their ratepayers’ interests. 

 
• Eliminate, delay, or diminish the reimbursement of municipalities’ reasonable 

costs incurred while investigating and challenging utility rate proposals or that 
would otherwise reduce municipalities’ ability to participate in the rate-setting 
process. 
 

Section 3.  The City directs ATM to support processes that: 

• Uphold and enforce municipalities’ original jurisdiction over gas utility 
ratemaking. 
 

• Preserve municipalities’ ability to fully investigate and challenge gas utilities’ 
proposed changes to their rates and tariffs. 

 
• Preserve municipalities’ historical right to prompt reimbursement of reasonable 

costs that the municipalities’ incur while investigating and challenging gas 
utilities’ proposals to change their rates in all related proceedings, without any 
onerous predicate requirements.  

 
Section 4.  The City authorizes the ATM Steering Committee to hire and direct its advocates in 

these efforts before the Railroad Commission of Texas and the Texas Legislature.  



 
4 of 4 

ATM Railroad Commission Resolution 

Section 5.  That a copy of this resolution shall be sent to Mr. Alfred R. Herrera, Herrera & 

Boyle, PLLC, 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1250, Austin, Texas 78701, in his role as Special 

Counsel to ATM.  

Section 6.  That the meeting at which this resolution was adopted was in all things conducted in 

strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551. 

Section 7.  That this resolution shall become effective from and after its passage. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of September 2014. 

 

 
_________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 


	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #13
	Item #14
	Item #15
	Item #16
	Item #17
	Item #18
	08-21-14 Minutes.pdf
	CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
	Pat Bryson Municipal Hall
	201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas
	Thursday ~ August 21, 2014 at 7:00 PM




